CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS
OKLAHOMA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT AND
ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2014




CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
AND ACCOMPANYING
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED
JUNE 30, 2014

Prepared By:
City of Nichols Hills Department of Finance
Kristi Hort, Finance Director



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

AND ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Page
INTRODUCTION SECTION:
Letter of Transmittal 1-2
List of Principal Officials 3
City Government Organizational Chart 4
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 5
FINANCIAL SECTION:

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 7-8
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 9-14
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Government-Wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position 15
Statement of Activities 16

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds 17

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to 18

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in

Fund Balance — Governmental Funds 19

Reconciliation of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

In Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to Statement of Activities 20

Statement of Net Position — Proprietary Fund 21

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position - Proprietary Fund 22

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund 23

Notes to the Financial Statements 24-48



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHCMA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

AND ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Schedule of Funding Progress — Defined Benefit Retirement Plan 49
Schedule of OPEB Status and Funding Progress 50
Budgetary Comparison Schedule (Budgetary Basis) — General Fund 51-52

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Budgetary
Comparison Schedule 53-54

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Combining Balance Sheet — General Fund Accounts 55
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance — General Fund Accounts 56
Combining Balance Sheet — Nonmajor Governmental Funds 57

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund

Balance — Nonmajor Governmental Funds 58
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Nonmajor Governmental Funds 59
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Major Governmental Funds 60
Combining Schedule of Net Position — Enterprise Fund Accounts 61
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

— Enterprise Fund Accounts 62

Table
STATISTICAL SECTION:
Net Assets/Net Position by Component - Last Ten Fiscal Years i 63
Changes in Net Assets/Net Position - Last Ten Fiscal Years 2 64-65
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds — Last Ten Fiscal Years 3 66

Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds — Last Ten
Fiscal Years 4 67

i



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

AND ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Table
STATISTICAL SECTION, (Continued):

Governmental Activities Tax Revenues by Source — Last Ten

Fiscal Years 5 68
Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property -

Last Ten Fiscal Years 6 69
Property Tax Rates, Direct and Overlapping Governments (Per £1,000

of Assessed Value) - Ten Fiscal Years 7 70
Principal Property Taxpayers — Current and Nine Years Ago g 71
Property Tax Levies and Collections — Last Ten Fiscal Years 9 72
Sales Tax Rates of Direct and Overlapping Governments — Last Ten Fiscal Years 10 73
Taxable Sales by Category — Last Six Fiscal Years 11 74
Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type — Last Ten Fiscal Years 12 75
Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net

Bonded Debt per Capita — Last Ten Fiscal Years 13 76
Computation of Direct and Overlapping Debt 14 77
Legal Debt Margin Information — Last Nine Fiscal Years 15 78
Municipal Authority Pledged Revenue Coverage — Last Ten Fiscal Years 16 79
Building Permits and Construction — Last Ten Calendar Years 17 80
Demographic and Economic Statistics — Last Ten Calendar Years 18 81
Principal Employers — Cumrent Year 19 22
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program — Last Eight Fiscal Years 20 83
Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by

Function/Program — Last Eight Fiscal Years 21 84

Operating Indicators by Function/Program — Last Eight Fiscal Years 22 85

il



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

AND ACCOMPANYING INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TABLE OF CONTENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

iv






cITy OF NICHOLS HILLS

December 23, 2014

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the
City of Nichols Hilis, Oklahoma:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (hereafter referred to as CAFR) of the
City of Nichols Hills for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. We believe the information, as presented, is accurate
in all material aspects and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an adequate understanding of the
City’s financial affairs have been included. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 9-14 provide
additional narrative and detailed analysis of the city’s financial affairs. It is the responsibility of the management of
the City to prepare the CAFR.

The City of Nichols Hills provides many municipal services including public safety, streets, parks, general
administration, and public utilities. For financial reporting purposes, all funds, agencies, boards, commissions and
authorities over which the City Council has financial accountability are included in this report. Financial
accountability is determined by several different factors including fiscal dependence, ability to impose will upon the
entity’s governing body, provision of specific financial burdens or benefits and separate legal entity status. Afier
careful evaluation of these factors, the City has included in this financial report the Nichols Hills Municipal
Authority, as well as all fands of the City.

Governmental Structure

The City of Nichols Hills operates as a Counci ger form of government. The legislative authority of the City
is vested in a three member elected City Council. The mayor is elected from among the council itself. The City
Council also serves as trustees of the Nichols Hills Municipal Authority. The Mayor and Council appoint a City
Manager, who is the chief executive officer of the city, and also appoint a City Treasurer. Responsibility for the
day-to-day operations of the City rests with the City Manager.

Economic Condition and Ontlook

Nichols Hills is a small community covering approximately two and one half square miles with the majority of the
town being residential in pature. The two major sources of operational income are sales tax and water revenues.
Declining sales tax continues to be at the forefront of our concern, T he Nichols Hills Plaza south is virtually empty
and the sales tax revenue generated by the plaza remains low. There is talk that the new owners will fill the
vacancies soon generating new sales tax revemme for the City.

In the meantime the City Council has increased the water and sanitation rates to make up for the low sales tax
revenues with the intention of lowering the rates when the sales tax from the plaza returns to normal.

TowN HalL 6407 AvONDALE DRIVE  NIcHOLS HiLLs, OKLAHOMA 73116-6431  405/843-6637, Fax 405/842-8409



Major Initiatives

The City of Nichols Hills will continue use of General Obligation Bonds to improve infrastructure. Street repair
continues as the main focus. Pennsylvania Street repair is scheduled for 2014. The City is doing the necessary
preparation for the next series of G.O. Bonds to be voted on. The propositions will likely include more street repair
and replacement, water, sewer repairs, renovation to city hall, and beautification of Grand Blvd. Park.

Independent Audit

The financial statements of the City and its component units for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, have been
audited by a firm of Independent Public Accountants, and their opinion is included in the Financial Section of this
Teport.

The financial statements are the responsibility of the City. The responsibility of the Independent Public Accountants
is to express an opinion on the City’s financial statements based on their audit. An audit is conducted in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require that the
audit be planned and performed in a manner to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Nichols Hills for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1997 through 2013. The Certificate of Achievement is
a prestigious national award recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local
government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, the contents of which conform to program standards.
The CAFR must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current report continues to
conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA.

Acknowledgment

We would like to thank our consultants, Crawford & Associates, P.C., for their professional guidance and
experience. And also, thanks to our auditors, Arledge & Associates, P.C, for their assistance in this process.

Finally, to the Nichols Hills City Council we extend heartfelt thanks for their support. It is their commitment to
financial reporting excellence that allows the citizens of Nichols Hills to be fully informed about their municipal
government finances. We are proud to convey the Council’s commitment to our citizens and to all readers of the
2013-14 CAFR.

Kristi Hort
City Manager Finance Director
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‘| Arledge

& Associates, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council of the
City of Nichols Hills, Oklahoma

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Nichols Hills,
Oklahoma, (the “City™) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents,

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Stamdards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2014, and the respective changes

in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles gencrally accepted in the United States of America.

7
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and eanalysis, budgetary comparison information, and the pension plan and other post-
employment benefits funding schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, other supplementary information,
and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and ar¢ not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, other
supplemental information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subj ected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 16
2014, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other mattets.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

mdr fW/g'C“

December 16, 2014



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Nichols Hills financial performance provides an overview of the City’s
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

»  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the City’s total net position increased by $852,771 or 3.4% from the
prior year.

* During the year, the City’s expenses for governmental activities were $8,625,171 and were funded by
program revenues of $1,713,300 and other general revenues and transfers that totaled $6.935,619. This
resulted in an increase in governmental activities net position of $23,748.

¢  The City’s business-type activities reported revenues of $3,659,370 and expenses and transfers of $2,830,347
resulting in an increase in net position of $829,023.

* At June 30, 2014, the General Fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $1,209,735, which is a decrease
from the prior year due to a transfer to fund capital projects.

o  For budgetary reporting purposes, the General Fund reported resources available for appropriation under
final of estimates of $201,398 or 3.4%, while expenditures were under the final appropriations by $201,571
or 3.4%.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANICAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements presented herein include all of the activities of the City of Nichols Hills (the “City”) and its
component unit using the integrated approach as prescribed by GASB. Tncluded in this report are governmental-wide
statements for each of two categories of activities — governmental and business-type.

The government-wide financial statements present the compliete financial picture of the City from the ecomomic
resources measurement focus using the accrual basis of accounting. They present governmental activities and
business-type activitics separately and combined. These statements include all assets of the City (including
infrastructure) and deferred outflows, as well as all liabilities (including long-term debt) and deferred inflows.

Reporting the City as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

One of the most frequently asked questions about the City’s finances is, “Has the City’s financial condition improved,
declined or remained steady over the last year?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities report
information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These
statements include all assets deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows using the accrual basis of accounting.
All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the City’s net position and changes in them from the prior year. You can think of the
City’s net position — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the City’s financial
condition, or pesition. Over time, increases or decreases in the City’s net position are one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. However, you must consider other nonfinancial factors, such as
changes in the City’s tax base and the condition of the City’s roads, to assess the overall health of the City.

As mentioned above, in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the City into two
kinds of activities:

* Governmental activities -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including the police, fire, general
administration, streets, and parks. Sales taxes, franchise fees, fines, and state and federal grants finance most of
these activities.



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

« Business-type activities - For these activities, the City charges a fee to customers to help cover all or most of the
cost of the services it provides. The City’s water and wastewater utilities are reported here.

Reporting the City’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds — not the City as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by State law and by bond covenants. However, management establishes
many other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal
responsibilities for using certain taxes, grants and other money.

Governmental funds -- Most of the City’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how
money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other
financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term
view of the City’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the
City’s programs. The differences of results in the governmental fund financial statements 1o those in the government-
wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation following each governmental fund financial statement.

Proprietary funds -- When the City charges customers for the services it provides — whether to outside customers or to
other units of the City — these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in
the same way that business-type activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities. In fact, the City’s enterprise funds are the same as the business-type activities we report in the
government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE
Net Position
The City’s combined net position increased from $25.1 million to $26.0 million between fiscal years 2013 and 2014.

Looking at the net position of governmental and business-type activities separately, governmental activities increased
and the business-type activities increased.

% Inc. % Inc. % Inc.
Govarmmental Activities {Dezc.) Business-Type Actlvities (Dec.} Total (Dec.}

2014 2013 2014 2M3 2014 2013
Cument assets $14,852,688 314,847 464 1% § 2,673,175 $ 1,775,220 51%  $17,626,863 $16,722,693 5%
Capital assets, net 17,176,637 16,125,046 ™% 18,081,681 18,156,953 0% 35,258,318 34,281,999 3%
Total assets $32,029,325 $31.072,510 3% _$20,754.856 $ 10,032,182 4% _$52784.191 $ 51,004,602 3%
Defarred outlow of resources $ 96,836 $§ 128115 25% _$ - S - 0% & 96,836 $ 128115 -26%
Long-term debt outstanding 25,572,487 24,420,876 5% 65,006 81,824 -21% 25,637,493 24,502,700 5%
Qther liabilities 1,201,443 1,452,262 7% 71,884 61,414 17% 1,273,327 1,513,676 -16%
Total liabllitles $26,773930 $250873,138 3% _§ 1354890 $ 143238 4% _$26910,.820 $26,016,376 3%

Net position

Net investment in capital assets 2,883,731 2425122 19% 18,058,754 18,118,659 0% 20,942,485 20,543,781 2%
Restricted 1,038,504 1,360,343 -24% - - 0% 1,038,504 1,360,343 -24%
Unrestricted 1,420 966 1,543,022 -7% 2,660,212 1,670,286 53% 3,889,208 3,213,307 24%
Total net position $ 5,352,231 $ 5328487 0% _§20,617.966 519,786,944 4%  §250870,187 $25,117.431 34%

The decrease in deferred outflows reported in the governmental activities is due to the amortization of the deferred
amounts related to debt refundings. The increase in the net investment in capital assets of the governmental activities
was largely due to the addition of paving projects to the capital assets. The decrease in governmental activities
restricted net position was due largely to the decrease of a GO Bond funds for capital projects.

10



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT?’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

The increase in business-type activities current assets increased due to the increase in revenue due to utility rate
increases. The increase in unrestricted net position is due to the increase in current assets for the reason mentioned in
the sentence above.

Change in Net Position
For the year ended June 30, 2014, net position of the primary government changed as follows:

Governmentat % Inc. Business-Type % Inc. % Inc.

Activiles (Dec) Activiles (Dec.) Fotat (Dec.)
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues - —_— L SN - I
Program revenues - Charges for services  $1,172,165 $ 1,004,885 1% 1 3,638,699 5 3,334,681 9% ¥ 4,810,884 $ 4,339,550 1%
Program revenues - Other 641,136 398,871 8% - - 841,135 368,871 36%
Taxes and cther gangral revenue
Texes 5,980,036 6,228,578 -4% 5,880,038 6,228,578 4%
Intergovernmental 108,746 82,808 33% - . 109,748 82,808 3%
Investmart income 34,997 42,872 -20% 5,602 6,805 -18% 40,089 49,677 -19%
Miscallanegus 718,434 551,218 30% 15,078 1218 1138% 733,513 552,434 33%
Total revenues B,565,013 8,308,212 3% 3,659,370 3,342,704 9% 1 4,383 11,651,916 5%
Expenses
General governmant 1,670,579 2,103,433 2% - 1,870,679 2,103,433 21%
Publlc safety 3,879,208 3,761,553 3% - - 3,879,299 3,761,553 3%
Highways and streets 1,262,972 592,671 113% B 1,262,972 582,671 113%
Culiure and recrsation 170,488 157,684 8% . 170,469 157,684 8%
Publlc works 1,149,352 1,107,820 4% : - 1,149,352 1,107,820 4%
Interest on iong-term debt 482,600 682,362 -20% - - 482,500 892,362 =20%
Waoter - - 1,957,810 2,534,168 21% 1,967,810 2,634,168 21%
Wastewater - - 748,831 371,186 102% 748 831 371,186 102%
Total expenses 8,625,171 8,415 523 2% 2,748,441 2,905354 -5% 11,371,612 11,320,877 0%
E {deficiency) before transf {60,158) (10B,311)  -43% 812,929 437,350 109% 852,771 331,039 1568%
Gain {loss) on disposal of assets - (25464} -100% - 19,708 100% - (5,7568) 100%
Transfers 83,906 629,841 B7% {83,808) (629,941) -87% - -
Ghange in net position 23,748 468,168 5% 829,023 (172,883)  -580% 852,771 326283  182%
Baginning net posltion 5,328,483 4,830,821 19,788,843 19,961,827 117, 24,792,148
Ending net position 5,352,231 i 5:328:487 320,617,968 18,756,844 25,870,197 525'1 17,431

Governmental program revenues increased due to capital contributions, Governmental miscellaneous revenue
increased due to a $497,527 reimbursement from the City of Oklahoma City related to a street project reimbursement.
Highway and street expenses increased due to capital projects. Interest on long-term debt decreased due to refunding
in prior year. Wastewater expenses increased due to capital projects. Transfers between governmental and business-
type activities are directly related to construction projects funded through general obligation proceeds and fluctuate
from year to year.

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is given. Of particular interest
is the format that is significantly different than a typical Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance. You will notice that expenses are listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program
reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the
relative financial burden of each of the functions on the City’s taxpayers. It also identifies how much each fimction
draws from the general revenues or if it is sclf-financing through fees and grants or contributions. All other
governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note all taxes are classified as general revenue even
if restricted for a specific purpose.

For the year ended June 30, 2014, total expenses for governmental activities amounted to approximately $8.6 million.
Of these total expenses, the program revenues funded $1.7 million through service charges and grants and other
contributions, while taxpayers, transfers, and other general revenues funded the remainder of $6.9 million. As a
result, governmental activities net position increased by $23,748.
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CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

Net Revenue (Expense) of Governmental Activities

Net Revenue Net Revenue
Total Expense (Expense) Total Expense (Expense)
of Services of Services of Services of Services
2014 2014 2013 2013
General government $1,670,579 ($1,515,155) $2,103,433 ($1,887,605)
Public safety 3,879,299 (3,304,731) 3,761,553 (3,189,096}
Highways and streets 1,262,972 (1,095,463) 592,671 (556,755)
Culture and recreation 170,469 (170,469) 157,684 (157,684)
Public Works 1,149,352 (333,553) 1,107,820 (528,281)
Interest on long-term debt 492,500 (492,500) 692,362 (692,362)
Total $8,625,171 (56,911,871) $8,415,523 ($7,011,783)
Business-Type Activities
Net Revenue (Expense) of Business-Type Activities
Net Revenue Net Revenue
Total Expense (Expense) Total Expense (Expense)
of Services of Services of Services of Services
2014 2014 2013 2013
Water $1,997,610 $689,304 $2,534,168 ($129271)
Wastewater 748,831 202,864 371,186 558,598
Total $2,746,441 $892,258 $2,905,354 $429,327

In the business-type activities, the charges for services in FY2014 were sufficient to cover expenses due to an increase
in rates in fiscal year 2014,

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

As the City completed its 2014 fiscal year, the governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $14.1 million

or 2 0.8% increase from the prior year. The enterprise fund reported net position of $20.6 million or a 4.2% increase
from 2013.

At June 30, 2014, the General Fund reported an unassigned fund balance of $1,209,735, which is a decrease from
prior year due to a transfer for capital projects. The Debt Service fund decreased its fund balance by $344,611 due to
regular debt payments. The Capital Improvement Fund increased its fund balance by $1,115,209 due to a transfer
from the General fund. The City issued Series 2014 General Obligation Bonds in the amount of $3,900,000 for capital
projects, creating an increase of GO Bond Fund fund balance of $775,603.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City Council made minor budget revisions. The General Fund reported resources
available for appropriations under final of estimates of $201,398 (3.3%) and expenditures under final appropriations
by $201,571 (3.3%).
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CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets

At June 30, 2014, the City had approximately $35.3 million invested in capital assets, net of depreciation, including
police and fire equipment, buildings, park facilities, water lines, sewer lines and systems. (See table below).

Primary Government Capital Assets
{Net of accumulated depreciation)
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Restated Restated
2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014
Land $88,000 $88,000 $195,742 $195,742 $283,742 $283,742
Buildings 466,813 431,045 191,091 171,710 657,904 602,755
Imp. other than buildings 34,750 32,095 478,608 432,482 513,358 464,577
Machinery, farniture and equipment 1,369,001 1,623,747 406,926 300,379 1,775,927 1,924,126
Infrastructure 11,109,631 12,529,570 - - 11,109,631 12,529,570
Utility improvements . - 16,149,370 16,633,370 16,149,370 16,633,370
Water rights . - 53,157 50,980 53,157 50,980
Construction in progress 3,056,850 2,472,180 682,059 297,018 3,738909 _ 2.769,198
Totals $16,125,045 $17,176,637 $18,156,953 $18,081,681 $34,281,998 $35,258,318

This year’s more significant capital asset additions are street projects totaling approximately $1.9 million and the $1.3
in wastewater lines, while the depreciation expense for all assets totaled $2.4 million. See Note 3.D. for additional
mformation.

Long- Term Debt Administration

At year-end, the City had approximately $25.6 million in outstanding long-term debt. (See table below). These debts
are further detailed below and excludes any unamortized debt premiums and discounts.

Primary Government Long-Term Debt

Total
Governmental Business-Type Percentage
Activitles Activities Tatal Change

2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013-2014

G.0. Bonds payable $24,115,000 $25,270,000 H - % $24,115,000 $25,270,000 4.8%
‘Water rights - - 24,427 22,927 24,427 22,927 -6.1%
Accrued comp absences 305,876 302,487 22,960 21,209 328,836 323,696 -1.6%
Utility deposits - - 20,570 20,870 20,570 20,870 1.5%
Totals $24,420,876 $25,572,487 $ 67,957 § 65,006 $24,488,833 $25,637,493 4.7%

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the City incurred an additional $3.9 million of general obligation bonds for capital
improvements, See Note 3.E. for additional information,
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CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget and Rates

The City of Nichols Hills will continue use of General Obligation Bonds to improve infrastructure. Street repair
continues as the main focus. Pennsylvania is the street scheduled for upcoming repairs.

Declining sales tax continues to be at the forefront of our concern. Water and sanitation rates have been raised to
increase revenue for the upcoming year.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management
This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general overview of
the City’s finances and to show the City’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this

report or need additional financial information, contact the City Clerk’s Office at 6407 Avondale Dr., Nichols Hills,
Oklahoma 73116 or phone at (405) 843-6637.
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City of Nichols Hills
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,265,307 $ 1,138,997 $ 6,404,304
Investments 8,581,007 1,100,633 9,681,640
Deposits with insurance pool 134,066 - 134,066
interest receivable 4,024 382 4,406
Accounts receivable, net - 525,990 525,990
Franchise tax receivable 54,754 - 54,754
Court fines receivabie, net 181,285 - 181,285
Other receivables 17,463 - 17.463
Internal balances 92,827 (92,827) -
Due from other governments 462,546 - 462,546
Prepaid assets 59,409 59,400
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets 2,560,180 492 760 3,052,940
Depreciable assets, net 14,616,457 17,588,921 32,205,378
Total capital assets 17,178,637 18,081,681 35,258,318
Total assets 32,029,325 20,754,856 52,784,181
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred amount on refunding 96,836 96,836
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 461,387 71,884 533,271
Compensated absences 30,249 2,121 32,370
Bonds and notes payable 2,585,000 648 2,585,648
Due in more than one year
Meter deposit liability - 20,870 20,870
Bonds and notes payable 22,685,000 22,279 22,707,279
Compensated absences 272,238 19,088 291,326
Net pension obligation 608,584 - 608,584
Net OPEB obligation 131,472 - 131,472
Total liabilities 28,773,930 136,890 26,910,820
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 2,883,731 18,058,754 20,942,485
Restricted for:
Debt service 918,294 918,294
Streets 95,564 - 95,564
Public safety 24,646 - 24,646
Unrestricted 1,429,996 2,559,212 3,989,208
Total net position $ 5,352,231 3 20,617,966 $ 25,870,197

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Nichols Hills

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2014

Total fund balance, governmental funds $ 14,110,808

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated
depreciation of $12,114,652. 17,176,637

Certain other long-term assets are not available to pay current fund liabilities
and therefore, are deferred in the funds:
Deferred inflows:

Court fines receivable 172,884
Interest receivable 2,162
Franchise fee receivable 33,770
Receivable from other governments 71,677

280,493

Certain liabilities are not due and payable from current financial resources
and therefore, they along with the deferred outlows, are not reported in the

funds:
General obligation bonds payable (25,270,000)
Accrued compensated absences (302,487)
Net pension obligation (608,584)
Other postemployment benefits (131,472)
Deferred amount on refunding 96,836
(26,215,707)
Net Position of Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position $ 5,352,231

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Nichols Hills

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds: $ 108,034

Amounts reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are
different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation to allocate those expenditures over the life of the
assets:

Capital asset purchases capitalized 2,148,062

Book value of disposed capltal assets (14,040)

Depreciation expense {1,082,430)
1,051,592

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds:
Change in deferred revenue 41,285

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmenta funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and can also increase deferred
amounts in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of debt principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds; but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the Statement of Net Position:

Bond proceeds received {3,900,000)
General obligation bond principal payments 2,745,000
Change in deferred amount of refunding of debt (32,279)

(1,187,279)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and these are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:

Accrued compensated absences 3,389
Net pension obligation 7,233
Other postemployment benefits (5086)
10,116

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 23,748

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Nichols Hills
Statement of Net Position
Propristary Fund
June 30, 2014

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Total current assets
Capital assets:
Non-depreciable assets
Depreciable assets, net
Total non-current assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Compensated absences, current portion
Notes payable, current portion
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences
Meter deposit fiability
Notes payable
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

Enterprise Fund

Nichols Hills
Municipal Authority

$ 1,118,127
20,870

1,100,633

525,990

382

2,766,002

492,760
17,588,921

18,081,681

20,847,683

71,884
92,827
2,121
648

167,480

19,088
20,870
22,279

62,237

220,717

18,058,754
2,559,212

$ 20,617,968

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Nichols Hills
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Enterprise Fund

Nichols Hills
Municipal Authority
REVENUES
Charges for services:
Water charges 3 2,644,758
Wastewater charges 951,695
Water taps 23,650
Penalties 18,596
Total operating revenues 3,638,698
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 473,021
Water and wastewater operations 904,233
Depreciation expense 1,322,152
Total operating expenses 2,699,406
Operating income 939,293
NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue 5,592
Miscellaneous revenue 15,079
Interest expense (21)
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets (47,014)
Total non-operating revenue {(expenses) (26,364)
Income before contributions and transfers 912,929
Capital contributions 1,293,894
Transfers out {1,377,800)
Change in net position 829,023
Total net position- beginning 19,788,843
Total net position - ending $ 20,617,966

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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City of Nichols Hills
Statement of Cash Flow
Proprietary Fund
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

Payments to suppliers

Payments to employees

Receipts of customer meter deposits

Refunds of customer meter deposits

Interfund recsipts/payments

Net cash provided by operating actlvities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to other funds
Net cash provided by (used In) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on debt
Interest and fiscal agent fees paid on debt
Net cash provided by (used in} capitai and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investmenis
Interest and dividends

Net cash provided by {used in) investing activities
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents

Balances - beginning of year

Balances - end of year

Total cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Recongiliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Operating activities:
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation expense
Miscellaneous revenue
Change in assets and liabilities:
Due to other funds
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable
Deposits subject to refund
Accrued compensated absences

Net cash provided by operating activities

Noncash activities:
Contributed capital assets

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Enterprise Fund

Nichols Hills
Municipal
Authority

$ 3,511,077
(742,234)
(626,301)

8,550
(8,250)
23,331

2,166,173

(1.377,800)
(1.377,800)

(1,500)
21

1)}
(1.521)

(600,633)
5,288
595,345
191,507

947,490

$ 1,138,997

3 1,138,997

$ 939,293

1,322,152
1,211

23,331
(128,833)

10,470

300
(1,751)

3 266173

$ 1,293,804
e
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CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City’s accounting and financial reporting policies conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP). Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP)
include all relevant Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. The accounting and
reporting framework and the more significant accounting policies are discussed in subsequent subsections of this Note.

1.A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The City’s financial reporting entity is comprised of the following:
Primary Government; City of Nichols Hills
Blended Component Unit: Nichols Hills Municipal Authority

In determining the financial reporting entity, the City complies with the provisions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting Entity” as amended by Statement 61, and includes all
component units of which the City appointed a voting majority of the units board and the City is financially
accountable.

The component unit is a Public Trust established pursuant to Title 60 of Oklahoma State law. A public trust
(Authority) has no taxing power. The Authority is generally created to finance City services through issuance of
revenue bonds or other non-general obligation debt and to enable the City Council to delegate certain functions to the
governing body (Trustees) of the Authority. The Authority generally retains title to assets which are acquired or
constructed with Authority debt or other Authority generated resources. In addition, the City has leased certain
existing assets at the creation of the Authority to the Trustees on a long-term basis. The City, as beneficiary of the
Public Trust, receives title to any residual assets when the Public Trust is dissolved.

BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT

Ablended component unit is a separate legal entity that meets the component unit criteria described above and whose
governing body is the same or substantially the same as the City Council or the component unit provides services
entirely to the City. In addition, management and staff of the City are also the management and staff of the component
unit. The component unit fund is blended into those of the City’s by appropriate fund category to comprise the primary
government presentation.

The component unit that is blended into the reporting fund categories of the City’s report is presented below.

Component Unit Brief Description/Inclusion Criteria Reporting Fund
Nichols Hills Municipal Created December 29, 1987, to finance, Enterprise Fund
Authority (NHMA) develop and operate the water and waste-

water activities of the City. Current City
Council serves as entire governing body
(Trustees). Debt issued by the Authority
requires 2/3rds approval of City Council.
In addition, management and staff of the
City are also the management and staff
of the component unit.

This component unit does not issue a separate annual financial report,
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1.B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Government-Wide Financial Statements.

The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the City as a whole. They include all
funds of the reporting entity. The statements distinguish between govemmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues. Business-
type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods or services.

Fund Financial Statements:

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be separate
accounting entities. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts which constitute its
assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are
organized into two major categories: governmental and proprietary. The City presently has no fiduciary funds. An
emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary categories. A fund is considered major if it is
the primary operating fund of the City or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets plus deferred outflows or liabilities plus deferred inflows or revenues or expenditures/expenses of
that individual governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds
of that category or type, and

b. Total assets plus deferred outflows or liabilities plus deferred inflows or revenues or expenditures/expenses of
the individual governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all
governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below:

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. Itis used to account for all activities except those legally or
administratively required to be accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Funds

Special Reverue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are either legally restricted to
expenditures for specified purposes or designated to finance particular functions or activities of the City. The reporting
entity includes the following special revenue funds:

Street and Alley Fund
E911

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for ad-valorem taxes levied by the City for use in retiring general obligation
bonds, court-assessed judgments, and their related interest expense and fiscal agent fees. State law refers to this fund as
the Sinking Fund.
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Capital Project Funds

Capital Project Funds are used to account for resources restricted for the acquisition or construction of specific capital
projects or items. The reporting entity includes the following capital project funds:

Capital Improvement Fund
GO Bond Fund

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
Enterprise Fund
Enterprise funds are used to account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities are
financed primarily by user charges and the measurement of financial activity focuses on net income measurement similar to
the private sector. The reporting entity includes the following enterprise fund:
Nichols Hills Municipal Authority Fund (Water and Wastewater)

MAJOR AND NON-MAJOR FUNDS

The funds are further classified as major or non-major as follows:

Mujor: Non-Major:
General Fund Special Revenue Funds;
Street and Alley Fund
Debt Service Fund E-911 Fund
Capital Project Funds:
Capital Improvement Fund
GO Bond Fund
Enterprise Fund:
Nichols Hills Municipal Authority

1.C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe “how” transactions are recorded within the various financial statements. Basis
of accounting refers to “when” transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Measurement Focus

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities both governmental and business-type
activities are presented using the economic resources measurement focus as defined in item 2. below.

In the fund financial statements, the “current financial resources” measurement focus or the “economic resources”
measurement focus is used as appropriate:

1. All governmental find types utilize a “current financial resources” measurement focus. Only current financial assets
and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses of
available spendable financial resources during a given period. These funds use fiund balance as their measure of
available spendable financial resources at the end of the period.
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2. Proprietary fund types utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. The accounting objectives of this
measurement focus are the determination of operating income, changes in net position (or cost recovery), financial
position and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or noncurrent, financial or nonfinancial) , along
with deferred outflows and deferred inflows associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund equity is
classified as net position.

Basis of Accounting

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities both governmental and business-type
activities are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains,
losses, assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are
recognized when the exchange takes place.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when “measurable and available”, Measurable means
knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. Available means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay current liabilities. Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund
liability is incurred. All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting,

1.D. ASSETS, DEFERRED OUTFLOWS, LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND EQUITY
Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of financial reporting, cash and cash equivalents includes all demand and savings accounts, and certificates
of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value which is determined using selected bases. Securities traded on a national or
international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates. All non-negotiable certificates of
deposit are carried at cost. Additional cash and investment disclosures are presented in 3.A.

Receivables

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Allowances
for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable. Major
receivable balances for the governmental activities include sales tax, franchise tax, grants and court fines. Business-type
activitics report utilities and interest carnings as its major receivables.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when “measurable and available”. Material receivables in
governmental funds include revenue accruals such as sales tax, franchise tax, coutt fine receivables, and grants and other
similar intergovernmental revenues since they are usually both measurable and available. Available has been defined by the
City as collected within 60 days of year end. Non-exchange transactions collectible but not available are deferred in the fund
financial statements in accordance with the modified accrual basis, but not deferred in the government-wide financial
statements in accordance with the accrual basis. Interest and investment earnings are recorded when earned only if available
to pay current liabilities since they would be considered both measurable and available. Proprietary fund material
receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end and not yet received. Utility accounts receivable and interest earnings
comprise the majority of proprietary fund receivables. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon
historical trends and the periodic aging of accounts receivable.
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Inventories

Due to their immaterial nature, the City has chosen to record consumable materials and supplies as expenditures/expenses at
the time of purchase, and, therefore, no balances for inventory on-hand are reported on the balance sheet,

Capital Assets

The accounting treatment over property, plant and equipment (capital assets) depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the government-wide or fund
financial statements. The threshold for capital asset additions is $1,000.

Government-Wide Statements

In the government-wide financial statements, property, plant and equipment are accounted for as capital assets. All capital
assets arc valued at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual is unavailable, except for donated capital assets
which are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of donation.

Prior to July 1, 2003, governmental activities’ infrastructure assets were not capitalized. These assets have not yet been
velued or recorded as capital assets. Only infrastructure additions after July 1, 2003 have been included in the balances of
capital assets.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of Activities, with
accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position. Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset of the City is

as follows:
Buildings 20-50 years
Equipment 2-20 years
Wastewater lines 50 years
Waterlines 50 years
Streets 20-50 years

Fund Financial Statements

In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay
expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for
the same as in the government-wide statements.

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets reported in the fund financial statements include current assets that are legally restricted as to theiruse. The
primary restricted assets are related to utility customer deposits and trustee accounts restricted for debt service,

Long-Term Debt

Accounting treatment of long-tenn debt varies depending upon the source of repayment and whether the debit is reported in
the government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental resources and business-type resources are reported as liabilities in the
government-wide statements. The long-term debt consists primarily of general obligation bonds payable, notes payable, and
accrued compensated absences.

Long-term debt of governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial statements. The debt proceeds are
reported as other financing sources and payments of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for
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proprietary funds is the same in the fund financial statements as it is in the government-wide statements.

Compensated Absences

The City’s policies regarding vacation and compensatory time permit employees to accumulate varying amounts as
determined by management and contracts with employee groups.

The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-wide statements. The cutrent
portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only
the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial resources if due and payable at period end for
terminated employees, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred.

Equity Classification

Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:

1.Net investment in capital assets — Consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowings that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

2. Restricted net position — Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by 1) external groups such
as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or 2) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

3, Unrestricted net position — All other net position that does pot meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in
capital assets”.

1t is the City’s policy to first use restricted net position prior to the use of unrestricted net position when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position are available.

Fund Financial Statements:

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance is further classified as nonspendable, restricted,

committed, assigned and unassigned. These classifications are defined as:

a. Nonspendable— includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b} legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact.

b. Restricted - consists of fund balance with constraints placed on the use of resources either by (a) external groups such as
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

c. Committed — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal
action of the City’s highest level of decision-making authority. The City’s highest level of decision-making authority is
made by ordinance.

d. Assigned — includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for specific purposes but are neither
restricted nor committed. Assignments of fund balance may be made by city council action or management decision
when the city council has delegated that authority. Assignments for transfers and interest income for governmental
funds are made through the budgetary process. City management currently has the authority to assign fund balance.
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€. Unassigned — represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been restricted, committed,
or assigned to specific purposes within the general fund, or represents deficit fund balances in non-general fund
governmental funds,

It is the City’s policy to first use restricted fund balances prior to the use of unrestricted fund balance when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fimd balances are available. The City’s policy for the use of
unrestricted fund balance amounts require that committed amounts would be reduced first, followed by assigned amounts and
then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund
balance classifications could be used.

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements,

LE. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES
Sales Tax

The City presently levies a four-cent sales tax on taxable sales within the City. The sales tax is collected by the Oklahoma
Tax Commission and remitted to the City in the month following receipt by the Tax Commission. Sales tax proceeds are
recorded in the General Fund. Sales tax accrued is included under the caption “Due from other governments”.

Property Tax

Under State law, municipalities are limited in their ability to levy a property tax. Such tax may only be levied to repay
principal and interest on general obligation bonded debt approved by voters and any court-assessed judgments.

At the present time the City levies a property tax to fund the annual debt service requirements of seven general obligation
bond issues.

The property tax levy, as determined by the City’s debt service needs, is submitted to the County Excise Board for approval.
County assessors, elected officials, determine the taxable value of real estate and personal property in the County. A State
Board of Equalization hears complaints on real estate values with the power to equalize assessments. Under present State
law, the ratio of assessed value to true value cannot be less than 11 percent nor more than 13 % percent.

Property taxes levied by the City are billed and collected by the County Treasurer’s Office and remitted to the City in the
month following collection. Property taxes are levied normally in October and are due in equal installments on December 31
and March 31. Propetty taxes unpaid for the fiscal year are attached by an enforceable lien on property in the following
October. Property taxes levied, but not collected during the year or within 60 days of year-end are reported as deferred
revenue,

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the City’s net assessed valuation of taxable property was $126,437,054. The taxes levied
by the City per $1,000 of net assessed valation for the year ended June 30, 2014 was $26.27.

Program Revenues

In the Statement of Activities, revenues that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the City’s
taxpayers are reported as program revenues. The City has the following program revenues in each activity:

General government Licenses and permits, other charges, capital grants
Public safety Court fines and animal license fees; pension plans on-behalf payments by state; capital
grants,

Highways and streets Operating grants and contributions include motor fuel and commercial vehicle intergovernmental
revenues.
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Public works Sanitation service charges.

All other governmental revenues are reported as general. It is important to note that all taxes are classified as general
revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for proprietary funds are those that result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods and/or services. It also includes all revenue and expenses not related to capital and related financing,
noncapital financing, or investing activities. Non-operating revenues and expenses are those related to capital and related
financing, non-capital financing, or investing activities.

Expenditures/Expenses

In the government-wide financial staterents, expenses are reported on the accrual basis and are classified by function for
both governmental and business-type activities.

In the fund financial statements, expenditures/expenses are classified as follows:
Governmental Funds - By Character: Current (further classified by function)
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Proprietary Funds - By Operating and Non-Operating

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report expenditures of financial resources. Proprietary funds report
expenses relating to the use of economic resources.

1.F. INTERNAL AND INTERFUND BALANCES AND ACTIVITIES

In the process of aggregating the financial information for the government-wide statement of net position and statement of
activities, some amounts reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been eliminated or
reclassified.

Fund Financial Statements:

Interfund activity, if any, within and among the governmental and proprietary fund categories is reported as follows in the
fund financial statements:

1. Interfund loans - amounts provided with a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund receivables and
payables,

2 Interfund services - sales or purchases of goods and services between funds are reported as revenues and
expenditures/expenses.

3. Interfund reimbursements - repayments from funds responsible for certain expenditures/expenses to the funds that
initially paid for them are not reported as reimbursements but as adjustments to expenditures/expenses in the
respective funds.

4, Interfund transfers - flow of assets from one fund to another where repayment is not expected are reported as transfers
in and out.
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Government-Wide Financial Statements:
Interfund activity and balances, if any, are eliminated or reclassified in the government-wide financial statements as follows:
1. Internal balances - amounts reported in the fund financial statements as interfund receivables and payables are
eliminated in the governmental and business-type activities columns of the statement of net position, except for the
net residual amounts due between governmental and business-type activities, which are reporied as Internal Balances.
2. Intemal activities - amounts reported as interfund transfers in the fund financial statements are eliminated in the
government-wide statement of activities except for the net amount of transfers between governmental and business-
type activities, which are reported as Transfers - Internal Activities.
The effect of interfund services between fiunds are not eliminated in the statement of activities,

1.G. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ
from those estimates.

NOTE 2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
By its nature as a local government unit, the City and its component unit are subject to various federal, state and local laws
and contractual regulations. An analysis of the City’s compliance with significant laws and regulations and demonstration of
its stewardship over City resources follows:

2.A. FUND ACCOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

The City complies, in all material respects, with all state and local laws and regulations requiring the use of separate funds.
The legally required funds used by the City include the following.

Fund Required By
Debt Service Fund (Sinking Fund) State Law
Mumicipal Authority Fund Bond Indenture

2.B. REVENUE RESTRICTIONS

The City complied, in all material respects, with the restrictions placed over certain reverme sources from state or local
requirements. The primary restricted revenue sources include:

Revenue Source Legal Restrictions of Use

Gasoline Excise & Commercial Vehicle Tax Street and Alley Purposes

‘Water and Wastewater Revenue Debt Service and Utility Operations
Ad-Valorem Tax Debt Service on General Obligation Bonds
E-911 Revenue E-911 Emergency Services Purposes

Sinking Fund Interest Income Retirement of General Obligation Bond Debt
Net Surplus Revenue of Municipal Authority Transfer to City General Fund

33



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2014

2.C. DEBT RESTRICTIONS AND COVENANTS

General Qbligation Debt

Article 10, Sections 26 and 27 of the Oklahoma Constitution limits the amount of outstanding general obligation bonded debt
of the municipality for non-utility or non-street purposes to no more than 10% of net assessed valuation. For the year ended
June 30, 2014, the City complied with the legal debt limit. Of the $25,270,000 outstanding general obligation bonded debt,
all but $691,027 is utility and street related.

2.D. FUND EQUITY / NET POSITION RESTRICTIONS

Restricted Net Position

Restricted net position at the government-wide financial statements are required to restrict funds in accordance with various
laws and regulations, specifically those laws and regulations dealing with debt service and the use of restricted revenues.

NOTE 3. DETAIL NOTES - TRANSACTION CLASSES/ACCOUNTS

The following notes present detail information to support the amounts reported in the basic financial statements for its
various assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses.

3.A. CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City of Nichols Hills held the following deposits and investments at June 30, 2014:

Carrying

Type of Deposits and Investments Yalue
Deposits:

Demand deposits $ 5,103,332

Time deposits 10,982,612
Total Deposits and Investments $ 16,085,944
Recongciliation to Statement of Net Position:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,404,304

Investments 9,681,640

S 1608594

Custodial Credit Risk — Exposure to custodial credit risk related to deposits exists when the City holds deposits that are
uninsured and uncollateralized; collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the City’s name; or collateralized without a written or approved collateral agreement.
Exposure to custodial credit risk related to investments exists when the City holds investments that are uninsured and
unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name.

At June 30, 2014, all deposits were collateralized.

Investment Credit Risk — Investment credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. The City has no formal policy limiting investments based on credit rating, but discloses any such
credit risk associated with their investments by reporting the credit quality ratings of investments in debt securities as
determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations—rating agencies—as of the year end. Investments ofa
City (excluding Public Trusts) are limited by State law to the following:
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a. Direct obligations of the U. S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities to which the full faith and credit of the
U.S. Government is pledged, or obligations to the payment of which the full faith and credit of the State of Oklahoma is
pledged.

b. Certificates of deposit or savings accounts that are either insured or secured with acceptable collateral with in-state
financial institutions, and fully insured certificates of deposit or savings accounts in out-of-state financial institutions.

¢. With certain limitation, negotiable certificates of deposit, prime bankers acceptances, prime commercial paper and
repurchase agreements with certain limitations.

d. County, municipal or school district tax supported debt obligations, bond or revenue anticipation notes, money
Jjudgments, or bond or revenue anticipation notes of public trusts whose beneficiary is a county, municipality or school
district.

e. Notes or bonds secured by mortgage or trust deed insured by the Federal Housing Administrator and debentures issued
by the Federal Housing Administrator, and in obligations of the National Mortgage Association.

£ Money market mutual funds regulated by the SEC and in which investments consist of the investments mentioned in the
previous paragraphs a., b., ¢., d., and e,

Public trusts created under O.8. Title 60, are not subject to the above noted investment limitations and are primarily
governed by any restrictions in their trust or bond indentures. For the year ended June 30, 2014, the City and its included
component unit complied, in all material respects, with the above noted investment restrictions.

Unless there is information to the contrary, obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the
U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit quality.

Investment Interest Rate Risk— Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value
of an investment. The City has no formal investment interest rate risk policy. The City discloses its exposure to interest rate
risk by disclosing the maturity dates of its various investments.

Concentration of Investment Credit Risk - Exposure to concentration of credit risk is considered to exist when investments
in any one issuer represent a significant percent of total investments of the City (any over 5% are disclosed). Investments
issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and
other pooled investments are excluded from this consideration, The City has no formal concentration of investment credit
risk policy.

At June 30, 2014, the City had no concentration of credit risk as defined above.
3.B. RESTRICTED ASSETS

The amounts reported as restricted assets in the proprietary fund financial statements are comprised of cash and cash
equivalents held by the trustee bank on behalf of the public trust (Authority) related to its promissory note accounts as
described in Note 2.C, in addition to utility deposits held for refund. The restricted assets as of June 30, 2014 were as
follows:

Type of Restricted Assets Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Utility Deposits $20.870
Total Restricted Assets $20,870
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3.C. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable of the business-type activities consists of customer utilities. Receivables detail at June 30, 2014 is as
follows:

Business-Type Governmental
Service receivables $551,836 Court receivable $872,821
Allowance for doubtful accounts (25.846) Allowance for doubtful accounts (691.536)
Total accounts receivable $525,990 Total accounts receivable $181,285
3.D. CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, was as follows:
Balance at Balance at
July 1,2013 Additions Disposals June 30,2014
Governmental activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 588,000 - - $88,000
Construction in progress 3,056,850 51,953,834 $2,538,504 2,472,180
Total capital assets not being depreciated 3,144,850 1,953,834 2,538,504 2,560,180
Other capital assets:
Buildings 914, 427 914,427
Improvements 141,587 - . 141,587
Machinery, fumiture and equipment 4,065,043 655,350 125,749 4,594,644
Infrastructure 19,003,070 2,077,382 - 21,080,452
Total other capital assets at historical cost 24,124,127 2,732,732 125,749 26,731,110
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 447,614 35,768 483,382
Improvements 106,837 2,655 - 109,492
Machinery, furniture and equipment 2,696,042 386,564 111,709 2,970,897
Infrastructure 7.893,439 657,443 - 8,550,832
Total accumulated depreciation 11,143,932 1,082,430 111,709 12,114,653
Other capital assets, net 12,980,195 1,650,302 14,040 14,616,457
Governmental activities capital assets, net $16,125,045 $3,604,136 $2,552,544 $17,176,637
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Restated
Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2013 Additions Disposals June 30, 2014
Business-type activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $195,742 - $195,742
Construction in progress 682,059 $913,917 $ 1,298,958 297,018
Total capital assets not being depreciated 877.801 913,917 1,298,958 492,760
Other capital assets:
Buildings 564,061 - . 564,061
Improvements 924,618 - - 924,618
Machinery, furniture and equipment 1,217,310 19,506 100,745 1,136,071
Utility improvements 30,574,427 1,659,429 32,233,856
Water rights 54,427 - - 54.427
Total other capital assets at historical cost 33,334,843 1,678,935 100,745 34,913,033
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings 372,970 19,381 . 392,351
Improvements 446,010 46,126 - 492,136
Machinery, fumniture and equipment 810,384 79,039 53,731 835,692
Utility improvements 14,425,057 1,175,429 - 15,600,486
Water rights 1,270 2,177 - 3,447
Total accumulated depreciation 16,055,691 1,322,152 53,731 17,324,112
Other capital assets, net 17,279,152 356,783 47,014 17,588,921
Business-type activities capital assets, net $18,156,953 $1,270,700 $1,345,972 $18,081,681

Depreciation expense was charged to functions in the Statement of Activities as follows:

Govemmental Activities:

General Government $92,132
Public Safety 257,421
Highways and Streets 383,467
Culture and Recreation 2,928
Public Works 346,482

Total depreciation expense for governmental activities $.1,082,430

Business-Type Activities;

Water $978,392
Wastewater 343,760

Total depreciation expense for business-type activities $1322.153

3.E. LONG-TERM DEBT

The reporting entity’s long-term debt is segregated between the amounts to be repaid from governmental activities and
amounts to be repaid from business-type activities.

Governmental Activities

At June 30, 2014, the governmental long-term debt of the financial reporting entity consisted of the following:

General Obligation Bonds:
$2,800,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009, due in annual installments

of $230,000 through July 1, 2021, with interest at 1.95% to 3.5% with final payment
of $270,000 due July 1, 2022, with interest at 3.5%. 1,880,000
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$2,400,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2019, due in annual installments
of $200,000 through July 1, 2022, with interest at 2.25% to 5.0% with final payment
of $200,000 due July 1, 2022, with interest at 3.15%. 1,800,000
$5,400,000 General Obligation Bends, Series 2011, due in annual installments
of $450,000 through July 30, 2025, with interest at 2.00% to 3.4% with final payment
of $450,000 due July 1, 2025, with interest at 3.40%. 4,950,000
$2,500,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2012, due in annual installments
of $205,000 through July 1, 2024, with interest at 1.10% to 3.1% with final payment
of $245,000 due July 1, 2025, with interest at 2.40%. 2,295,000
%4,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Seties 2013, due in annual instaliments
of $330,000 through June 30, 2027, with interest at 0.60% to 2.0% with final payment
of $370,000 due June 30, 2027, with interest at 2.00%. 4,000,000
$9,175,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012, due in annual installments
of $270,000 to 1,500,000 through July 1, 2021, with interest at 0.50% to 1.75% with final payment
of $270,000 due July 1, 2021, with interest at 1.75%. 6,445,000
$3,900,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2014, due in annual installments
of $329,875 to 409,256 through June 30, 2028, with interest at 1.50% to 3.0% with final payment
of $329,875 duc June 30, 2028, with interest at 3.0%. 3.900.000
Total General Obligation Bonds Payable $25,270,000
Current portion $2,585,000
Non-current portion 22,685,000
General Obligation Bonds Payable $25,270,000
Accrued Compensated Absences:
Current portion $30,249
Non-current portion 272,238
Total Accrued Compensated Absences $302,487

Business-Type Activities

At June 30, 2014, the long-term debt payable from enterprise fund resources consisted of the following:

Water Rights:

Obligation payable to People’s Church, original amount of $54,427, for use of groundwater,

payable in an initial $30,000 payment and 24 annual installments of $1,500, final maturity in December 2036.

Current portion
Non-current portion

Water Rights Payable
Accrued Compensated Absences:
Current portion
Non-current portion

Total Accrued Compensated Absences
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Changes in Long-Term Debt
The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2014:
Restated Amount
Balance Balance Due Within
Type of Debt June 30, 2013 Additions Deductions June 30, 2014 One Year
Governmental Actitivites;
General Obligation Bonds Payable  § 24,1 15,000 £ 3,900,000 $ 2,745,000 $ 25,270,000 ) 2,585,000
Accrued Compensated Absences 305,876 273,650 277,039 302,487 30,249
Total Governmental Activities $ 24,420,876 $ 4,173,650 $ 3,022,039 $ 25,572.487 $ 2,615,249
Business-Type Activities:
Water Rights $ 24,427 $ - $ 1,500 $ 22927 § 648
Accrued Compensated Absences 22,960 40,127 41,878 21,209 2,121
Total Business-Type Activities $ 47,387 $ 40,127 $ 43,378 $ 44,136 § 2,769

Governmental accrued compensated absences are liguidated by the general fund.

Annual Debt Service Requirements
The annual debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and interest, for long-term debt as of June 30, 2014,
are as follows:
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
Year Ended G.0. Bonds Payable Water Rights
June 30, Princi; Interest Principal Interest
2015 $2,585,000 $866,024 648 7,734
2016 2,765,000 787,793 672 7,456
2017 2,930,000 744,807 697 7,174
2018 2,675,000 703,115 723 6,889
2019 2,450,000 664,005 750 6,600
2020-2024 8,840,000 2,122,284 4,190 3,315
2025-2029 3,025,000 41,053 5,027 2,476
2030-2034 - - 6,081 1,469
2035-2038 - - 4,139 358
Totals $25,270,000 $5,929,171 $22,927 $43,471
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3.F. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2014 were as follows:
Payable To Receivable From Amount Purpose
General Fund Municipal Anthority $ 79,385  Sanitation revermes to be transferred to General Fund
Capital Improvement Fund General Fund 10,881  Expenditures paid by other fund
General Fund Municipal Authority 13,442  Expenditures paid by other fund
Street and Alley Fund General Fund 1,286  Expenditures paid by other fund
GO Bond Fund General Fund 1,065  Expenditures paid by other fund
3106059
Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements:
Due To Due From Net Internal Balances
Governmental Funds $ 106,059 §$ (13,232) 8 92,827
Proprietary Funds - (92,827) (92,827)
% 106,059 $__ (106,059) -
Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2014, were as follows:
Transfer From Transfer To Amount Purpose
Municipal Authority Fund General Fund § 1,377,800  Trust indenture requirement of net profits
General Fund Capital Improvement Fund 1,533,225 Reimbursement of capital projects
§ 2,911,025
Reconciliation to Fund Financial Statements/Statement of Activities:
Contributed
Transfers In Transfers Out Capital Transfer Net Transfers
Governmental Funds $ 2,911,025 $ (1,533,225) $ (1,293,894 § 83,906
Proprietary Funds - (1,377,800) 1,293,894 {83,906)
$ 2011,025 & (2,911,025 § - 8 -
NOTE 4. OTHER NOTES
4.A. EMPLOYEE PENSION AND OTHER BENEFIT PLANS
The City participates in three employee pension systems as follows:
Name of Plan/System Type of Plan
Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement Fund Cost Sharing Multiple Employer - Defined Benefit Plan
Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement Fund ~ Cost Sharing Multiple Employer - Defined Benefit Plan
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF) Agent Multiple Employer - Defined Benefit Plan

Oklahoma Police and Firefighter's Pension and Retirement Systems

The City of Nichols Hills, as the employer, participates in two statewide cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
plans on behalf of the police officers and firefighters. The systems are funded by contributions from participants,
employers, insurance premium taxes, and state appropriations, as necessary.
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4. Eligibility Factors, Contribution Methods, and Benefit Provisions

Obtaining separately issued
financial statements

Eligibility to participate

Authority establishing
contribution obligations and
benefits

Employee’s contribution rate
(percent of covered payrolf)

City’s contribution rate
(percent of covered payroll)

State obligation
Period required to vest

Eligibility and benefits for
distribution (full-time)

Eligibility and benefits for
distribution (volunteer)

Deferred retirement option

Provisions for:
Cost of living adjustments
(normal retirement)

Death (duty, non-duty, post
retirement)

Oklahoma Police Pension
and Retirement System

Police Pension and Retirement
1001 N.W. 63rd St., Suite 605
Oklahoma City, OK 73116-7335

All full-time officers, employed by a
participating municipality, not less
than 21 years of age or more than 45
years of age when hired.

State Statute

8%

13%

11.2%

10 years

20 years credited service, 2.5% of
fina] average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service witha
maximum of 30 years considered; if
vested, at or after age 50, or after
10 but before 20 years of credited
service, with reduced benefits.

Yes, 20 years credited service with
continued service for a maximum of
5 years.

Yes
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Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension
and Retirement System

Firefighters Pension & Retirement
4545 N. Lincoln Blvd., Suite 265
Oklahoma City, OK 73105-3414

All  full-time or voluntary
firefighters of a participating
municipality hired before age 45.

State Statute

8%

13%

21.9%
10 years

20 years credited service 2.5% of
final average salary multiplied by
the years of credited service witha
maximum of 30 years considered;
if vested, at or after age 50, or
after 10 but before 20 years of
credited service, with reduced
benefits,

20 years credited service equal to
$5.46 per month per year of
service, with a maximum of 30
years considered.

Yes, 20 years credited service with
continued service for a maximum
of 30 or more years,

Yes, if vested by 5/83

Yes
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Disability (duty, non-duty) Yes Yes
Cost of living allowances Yes Yes
B. Trend Information
City contributions required by State statute:
Oklahoma Police Pension Oklahoma Firefighter's Pension
and Retirement System and Retirement System
Fiscal Year Required Percentage Required Percentage
Contribution  Contributed Contribution Contributed
2012 99,150 100% 110,158 100%
2013 96,099 100% 117,793 100%
2014 99,586 100% 125,741 100%

The state made on-behalf payments to the Okiahoma Police Pension and Retircment System and the Oklahoma
Firefighter’s Pension and Retirement System of $87,498 (or 11.4% of covered payroll) and $277,209 (or 30.0% of
covered payroll), respectively, for the fiscal year. These are recorded as both a revenue and expense.

Trend information showing the progress of the Systems in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is
presented in their respective separate annual financial reports.

C. Related Party Invesiments

As of June 30, 2014, the Systems held no related-party investments of the City or of its related entities.
Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OMRF)

A. Plan Description, Eligibility Factors, Contribution Methods, and Benefit Provisions

1. Plan Description

As authorized by City ordinance, effective March 1, 1977, the City began contributing to the City of Nichols Hills
Plan and Trust in the form of The Oklahoma Municipal Retirement System Master Defined Benefit Plan and
Trust, an agent multiple employer - defined benefit plan. Administration of the City’s individual plan, including
establishing or amending plan revisions, rests with the City Council. The overall operations of OMRF are
supervised by a nine-member Board of Trustees elected by the participating municipalities. Bank One Trust
Company of Oklahoma City acts as administrator and securities custodian. OMRF issues separate plan financial
statements which may be obtained by contacting the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, 100 N. Broadway,
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, 73102,

2. Bligibility Factors, Contribution Methods and Benefit Provisions

Provision OMRF Plan
a. Eligible to Participate Full-time, non-uniformed employees of the City or Authority
upon hire if less than age 60.

b. Contribution Requirements:
- Authorization By City ordinance
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- Actuarially Determined
- Employer Rate
- Employee Rate

¢. Period Required to Vest

d. Eligibility for Distribution

¢. Benefit Determination Base

f. Benefit Determination Methods:

- Normal Retirement

- Early Retirement

- Disability Retirement

- Death Benefit

- Prior to 7 Years Service

g. Form of Benefit Payments

Yes

19.85% of covered payroll (Actuarially determined 30.85%)
11% of earnings

7 years of credited service

- Normal retirement at the earlier of:
Age 65 with 7 years of service;
Age 55 with 80 points and 7 or more years of service
- Early retirement at age 55 with 7 years of service
- Disability retirement upon disability with 7 years of service
- Death benefit with 7 years of service for married employees

Final average salary - the average of the five highest consecutive
anmual salaries out of the last 10 years of service.

2.625% of final average salary multiplied by credited years of
service.

Actuarially reduced benefit based upon age and years of service at
termination.

Benefit computed as for normal retirement based on average salary
and service as of the date of disability.

50% of employee’s accrued benefit, but terminates upon spouse
remarriage.

Return of employee contributions with accrued interest.
Normal form is a 60 months certain and life thereafter basis.

Employee may elect, with City consent, optional form based on
actuarial equivalent.

B. Annual Pension Costs and Net Pension Oblization

1. Current Year Contribution Information

The City contributed $354,176 of covered wages and the employees contributed $194,415.

2. Actuarial Assumptions:

Date of Last Actuarial Valuation For Plan Year July 1, 2014
a.  Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal

b.  Rate of Return on Investments 7.5%

¢.  Projected Salary Increase rates by age

d.  Post Retirement Cost-of-Living Increase 3.0%
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e. Inflation Rate Separate Inflation rate not available; inflation
included in projected salary increase.

f  Amortization Method of Unfunded Actuarial Level percentage of projected payroll.
Accrued Liability
g. Remaining Amortization Period Due to the use of the aggregate actuarial cost
method, unfunded actuarial liabilities are not
amortized.
h. Asset Valuation Method A tentative actuarial value, calculated as a

7.5% yield on the actuarial value at the
beginning of the period, increased or
decreased by a cumulative adjustment using a
range of 90% to 110% of the current market
value of the fund.
3. Net Pension Obligation

The change in net pension obligation for the fiscal year is as follows:

Annual required contribution § 412,828

Interest on net pension obligation 39,064

Adjustment to annual required contribution 42,535

Annual NPO cost (expense) 494,427

Contributions made (501,660)

Decrease in net pension obligation (7,233)

Net pension obligation—beginning of year 615,817

Net pension obligation—end of vear 608,584

C. Trend Information
Fiscal Year Annual Pension Percentage of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC Contributed Obligation

June 30, 2005 $259,579 53% $318,834
June 30, 2006 $294,499 70% $406,844
June 30, 2007 $323,082 128% $314,536
June 30, 2008 $288,167 90% $343,172
June 30, 2009 $275,380 103% $312,460
June 30, 2010 $389,405 71% $427.844
June 30, 2011 $385,070 75% $525,673
June 30, 2012 $345,933 85% $577,396
June 30, 2013 $375,859 90% $615,817
June 30, 2014 $494.427 101% $608,584

Actuarial valuation information for the current year is as follows (expressed in millions of dollars):

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued AAl. asa
Valuation Value of Liability (AAL) Unfunded Funded Covered Percentage of
Date Assets -- Entry Age AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
1/1/14 $6.0 $7.5 $1.5 79.8% $1.7 86.3%

This method does not identify or separately amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities information about funded
status and funding progress is presented using the entry age actuarial cost method and that the information presented is
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intended to serve as a surrogate for the funded status and funding progress of the plan.

The schedule of funding progress for postemployment defined benefit plan immediately following the notes to the
financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing
or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits over time.

D. Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation.

Plan Description: The City provides post-retirement benefit options for health care, and prescription drug benefits for
retired employees and their dependents that elect to make required contributions. The benefits are provided in
accordance with State law, police and firefighter's union contracts and the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1985 (COBRA). The relationship for these benefits is not formalized in a contract or plan
document, only a few sentences in the administrative policy. These benefits are considered for accounting purposes to
be provided in accordance with a single employer substantive plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms
are understood by the city and plan members. This understanding is based on communications between the employers
and plan member and the historical pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs. Substantially all of
the government's employees may become eligible for those post-retirement benefits if they reach normal retirement age
while working for the City. As of June 30, 2014, 2 retired employees are receiving benefits under this plan.

Funding Policy. The contribution requirement of the City is an implicit subsidy. The implicit subsidy is not a direct
payment from the employer on behalf of the member but rather stems from retiree contribution levels that are less than
the claims cost at retiree ages. Since claims experience for employees and non-Medicare eligible retirees are pooled
when determining premiumns, these retired members pay a premium based on a pool of members that, on average, are
younger and healthier. There is an implicit subsidy from the employee group since the premiums paid by the retirees
are lower than they would have been if the retirees were insured separately. The subsidies are valued using the
difference between the age-based claims costs and the premium paid by the retiree.

The amount required to fund the implicit rate is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements, For fiscal
year 2014, the City contributed $11,869 to the plan. Plan members receiving benefits contributed $11,869, or 100
percent of the total premiums, through their required contribution of $498.09 per month for retiree-only coverage and
$1,095.85 for retiree and spouse medical coverage.

The City's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annua) required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty
years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost, the amount actually contributed to
the plan, and changes in the City’s net OPEB obligation for the year ended June 30, 2014:

Annual required contribution 3 58,153
Interest on net OPEB obligation 5,893
Adjustment to annual required contribution (51,671)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 12,375
Contributions made (11,869)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 506
Net OPEB obligation—beginning of year 130,966
Net OPEB obligation—end of year $ 131472

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the unfunded OPEB
obligation for 2014 was as follows:
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Percentage of
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Annual OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
6/30/10 $43,197 25% $32,593
6/30/11 $45,322 23% $67311
6/30/12 $38,586 35% $92,213
6/30/13 $44,095 26% $130,966
6/30/14 $12,375 96% $131,472

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of August 8, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was
zero percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $479,731, and the actuarial value of assets was
zero, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $479,731. The covered payroll (annual payroll of
active employecs covered by the plan) was $3.5 million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 14
percent.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment,
mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the fanded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actnal results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required
supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about
whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued
liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the
long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the August 8, 2014, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions
included a 4.35 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the
expected long-term investment returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated based on the
funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 7.35 percent initially, reduced
by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.87 percent in 2060, based upon dependent rates. Separate Inflation rate not
available; inflation included in annual healthcare cost trend rate. There were no assets to determine the actuarial value
of assets. The UAAL is being amortized over 30 year closed period as level payments. The remaining amortization
period at June 30, 2014, was twenty-five years.

4.B. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of asset; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; employees health and life; and natural disasters. The City manages these various
risks of loss as follows:

Type of Loss Method Managed Risk of Loss Retained
a. Torts, errors and omissions, Purchased commercial None

asset loss and natural insurance

disasters

46



CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2014
b. Worker’s Compensation Participates in Oklahoma Municipal I
- Employee injuries Assurance Group (OMAG) risk entity
pool. Participant fee includes an
actuarially determined amount held Specific aggregate stop loss
by OMAG as the loss reserve fund, coverage is provided by the
to pay claims incurred. Claims are State Insurance Fund and
administered by the State Insurance covers all claims above the
Fund. loss reserve fund,
c. Health and Life: Purchased commercial insurance None
- Medical
- Life

Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preciude any significant uninsured losses to the City. Settled
claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years,

(1) Oklahoma Municipal Assurance Group (OMAG)
Worker’s Compensation Plan

The title to all assets acquired by the Plan are vested in the Plan, In the event of termination of the Plan, such
property shall belong to the then members of the Plan in equal shares. Each participating city pays for all costs,
premiums, or other fees attributable to its respective participation in the Plan, policy or service established under
the agreement establishing the Oklahoma Mumicipal Assurance Group, and is responsible for its obligations under
any contract entered into with the Plan.

Reserves for policy and contract claims provide for reported claims on a case basis and a provision for incurred
but not reported claims limited to specific retention levels for each member as outlined in the Plan’s reinsurance
agreement.

- The Plan’s worker’s compensation coverage is reinsured for losses in excess of respective retention levels. The
The Plan’s worker’s compensation coverage is reinsured for losses in excess of respective retention levels. The
reinsurance agreement covers losses incurred within the effective period of the agreement. Each Plan member’s
liability for claims losses is limited to their individual retention levels as outlined in the Plan’s reinsurance
agreement.

4.C. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitmenits:
Construction Contracts

The City is involved in the following construction contracts at June 30,2014:

Payable Original Outstanding Balance
Fund Contract at June 30, 2014
Wilshire Boulevard GO Bond Fund $1,582,535 $838,372
Conti ies:
Litigation

The City is a party to various legal proceedings which normally occur in the course of governmental operations.
State statutes provide for the levy of an ad valorem tax over 2 three-year period by the City’s “Sinking Fund” for
the payment of any court-assessed judgment rendered against the City. This provision is not applicable to the
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Nichols Hills Municipal Authority.
4.D. FUTURE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued several new accounting pronouncements, which will be effective in subsequent years. A
description of the new accounting pronouncements, the fiscal year in which they are effective, and the City’s
consideration of the impact of these pronouncements are described below:

Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27.
GASB No. 68 establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred ouiflows of resoutces,
deferred inflows of resources, and pension expenses. GASB No. 68 also details the recognition and disclosure
requirements for employers with liabilities to a defined benefit pension plan and for employers whose employces are
provided with defined contribution pensions. Defined benefit pensions are further classified by GASB No. 68 as
single employer plans, agent employer plans and cost-sharing plans, and recognition and disclosure requirements are
addressed for each classification. GASB No. 68 was issued in June 2012, and the City has not yet determined the
impact that implementation of GASB No. 68 will have on its net position. The Statement is effective for fiscal years
ended June 30, 2015. At this time the impact to the city is unknown.

Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations—GASB No. 69 was issued
in January 2013, and establishes accounting and financial reporting standards related to government combinations
and disposals of government operations. Government combinations can include a variety of transactions, including
mergers, acquisition, and transfers of operations. A disposal of a government’s operations results in the removal of
specific activities of a government. The requirement of this Statement are effective for government combinations
and disposals of government operations occurring in financial reporting periods beginning after December 15,2013,
and should be applied on a prospective basis. At this time the impact to the city is unknown.
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Required Supplementary Information

The funded status and funding progress of the City’s defined benefit OPEB plan for the most recent
actuarial valuations is as follows:

July 1,2011  July1,2012  July1,2013

Actuarial accrued liability - AAL (a) $381,269 $472,933 $479,731
Actuarial value of plan assets (b) - - -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability —

UAAL (funding excess) (a) — (b) $381,269 $472,933 $479,731
Funded ratio (b)/(2) 0% 0% 0%
Covered payroll (c) $3,091,000 $3,091,000 $3,475,000

UAAL (funding excess) as a % of covered o o .
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OMRF Agent Multiple Employer Defined Pension Plan

Schedule of Pension Plan Funding Progress

Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued  Unfunded (1) AAI asa% of
Date Assets -- Entry Age AAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll
1/1/05 $3,209,670 $4,243,568 $1,033,898  75.6%  $1,228514 84.2%
1/1/06 $3,423.970 $4.502,719 $1,078,749  76.0%  $1,203,909 89.6%
1/1/07 $3,915,407 $5,192,276 $1,276,869  75.4% $1,344,313 95.0%
1/1/08 $4,341,640 $5,761,506 $1,419.866  754%  $1,430,027 99.3%
1/1/09 $4,469,828 $6,548,341 $2,078,513 68.3%  $1,584,844 131.1%
1/1/10 $4,529,559 $6,902,069 $2,372,511 65.6%  $1,564,837 151.6%
1/1/11 $4,922,833 $7,253,960 $2,331,127 67.9% $1,544,818 150.9%
1/1/12 $5,019,814 $6,927,984 $1.908170 72.5%  $1.456,742 131.0%
1/1/13 $5,441,812 $7,592,269 $2,150,457 71.7%  $1,596,875 134.7%
1/1/14 $5,951,119 $7,454,361 $1,503,242 79.8%  $1,741,654 86.3%

(1) Payroll is the total annualized rate of pay as of the valuation date based on actual pay for the preceding year.
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Beginning Budgetary Fund Balance:

Resources {Inflows):
Taxes:
Sales and use tax
Franchise tax

Total Taxes
Interpovemmental:
Alcoholic baverage tax
Grant revenue
Total Intergovernmental
Charges for services:
Garbage charges
Ambulance charges
Total Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Licenses and Permits:
Building permits
Plumbing permits
Plumbing licenses
Animal licenses
Electrical licenses
Electrical permits
Alcoholic beverage licenses and permits
Miscellaneous
Total Licenses and Permits
Investment Income
Miscallaneous:
Lease revenua
Other
Total Miscellaneous

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers from other funds

Total Other Financing Sources
Total Resources (Inflows)

Amounts available for appropriation

CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, GKLAHOMA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE {BUDGETARY BASIS)-

GENERAL FUND
For the year ended June 30, 2014

Variance with
Budgeted Amounts Actual Final Budget
Original Final Amounts Posltive {Negative)
$1.202,000 $1,202,000 $3,950,328 $2,748,329
2,668,825 2,668,825 2,489,117 {179,708)
381,275 381,275 543,738 162,463
3,050,100 3,050,100 3,032,855 (17,245)
5,370 5,370 5,842 472
. 7.249 7,249
5,370 5,370 13,091 7,721
566,750 566,750 811,387 244,637
49,435 49,435 51,789 2,354
616,185 616,185 863,176 246,991
136,485 136,485 150,523 14,038
54,590 54,690 59,097 4,507
23,875 23,875 21,176 (2,690)
18,035 18,035 27,295 9,260
455 455 580 125
4,080 4,080 9,451 5,371
14,320 14,320 12,972 (1,348)
2,485 2,485 65,345 2,860
75,890 75,890 12,259 {63,631)
193,730 193,730 148,175 (45,555)
5,925 5,925 5,403 {622)
156,330 156,330 142,421 {13,908)
108,425 108,425 142,658 34,233
264,755 264,755 285,079 20,324
1,804,950 1,804,950 1,377,800 {427,150)
1,804,950 1,804,950 1,377,800 (427,150)
8,077,500 6,077,500 5,876,102 {201,398)
7,279,500 7,279,500 9,826,431 2,546,931
{Continued)
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Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

GENERAL GOVERNMENT:
Council

Manager/Clerk

Treasurer

Attornay

Engineer

Building and Code Division
Safety/Risk

General Govemment
Information Systems

TOTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENT
PUBLIC SAFETY:
Court
Police
Fire

TOTAL PUBLIC SAFETY
HIGHWAYS AND STREETS
PUBLIC WORKS:
Sanitation
Public Works

TOTAL PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS AND RECREATION

Total Charges to Appropriations

Ending Budgstary Fund Balance

CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE (BUDGETARY BASIS) -

GENERAL FUND

For the year ended June 30, 2014

{Continued)

Variance with
Budgseted Amounts Actual Final Budget

Orginal Final Amounts Positive (Nagative)
790 790 782 8
454,495 450,090 434,974 15,116
1,320 1,320 1,304 16
155,000 206,260 205,260 -
80,000 40,400 40,364 36
112,046 116,435 104,762 11,673
116,010 118,355 109,614 8,741
465,840 428,346 417,075 11,27
218,650 174,610 153,821 20,789
1,604,150 1,535,606 1,467,956 67,650
85,115 87,240 80,507 6,733
1,763,430 1,784,580 1,751,709 32,881
1,375,020 1,414,714 1,384,130 30,684
3,223,565 3,286,544 3,216,346 70,198
265,565 234,350 231,266 3,094
677,165 693,230 670,433 22,797
150,325 166,000 123,779 32,221
827,490 849,230 794,212 55,018
166,730 171,770 166,159 5,611
6,077,500 6,077,500 5,875,929 201,571
$1,202,000 $1,202,000 $3,950,502 $2,748,502

See the accompanying footnotes to the budgetary comparison schedules
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CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUFPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

Budget Law

The City has adopted the provisions of the Municipal Budget Act of 1979 (the “Budget Act”). In accordance with the
Budget Act, the following process is used to adopt the annual budget:

a. Prior to June 1, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following July 1.

b. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. At least one public hearing must be held no later
than 15 days prior to July 1.

¢. Subsequent to the public hearings but no later than seven days prior to July 1, the budget is adopted by
resolution of the City Council.

d. By July 1, the adopted budget is filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector.

Per State law, the legal level of control at which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations is the department
level within a fund.

All transfers of appropriation between departments and supplemental appropriations require City Council approval. The
City Manager may transfer appropriations between object categories within a department without City Council approval.
Supplemental appropriations must also be filed with the Office of State Auditor and Inspector.

Budgetary Accounting

The annual operating budgets are prepared and presented on a non-GAAP budgetary basis of accounting. This basis
records revenues when available and measurable and expenditures in the month preceding payment approval by the
goveming body. The exceptions to this basis are the transactions related to the City’s participation in a worker’s
compensation insurance pool, which are recorded at net for budgetary purposes, state pension on-behalf payments, and
payable accruals.

Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

General Fund
Sources/Inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total resources” from the budgetary comparison schedule $5,876,102
Differences — budget to GAAP:
Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources but are not revenues for

financial reporting purposes. (1,377,800)
State payments made on-behalf of police and fire pension not considered a budgetary resource 364,707
Designated accounts fund revenues 3,174
Revenues not considered a budgetary resource 97.057
Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund

balance — general fund $4,963.240
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CITY OF NICHOLS HILLS, OKLAHOMA
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014
(Continued)

Uses/Qutflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) “total charges to appropriations” from the
budgetary comparison schedule

Differences — budget to GAAP:

State payments made on-behalf of police and fire pensions

Designated accounts fund expenses

Expenses not reported as outflows for budgetary purposes

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balance — general fund

Transfers

Transfer out from budgetary comparison

Transfer not reported for budgetary purposes

Total transfer out reported on statement of revenue, expenditures, and
Changes in fund balance — general fund
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364,707
4,608
29.215

274

$ =
1,533,225
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Deposits with insurance pool
Prepaid expenses
Receivables:
Accrued interest receivable
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Franchise tax recsivable
Court fines receivable, net
Other receivables
Total assets

City of Nichols Hllls

Comblning Balance Sheet Accounts

General Fund Accounts
June 30, 2014

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Escrow liabilities
Due to bondholders
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred revenue

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted for:
Donations
Assigned for;
Economic development
Insurance premiums
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows and fund balances $

Designated Total General
General Fund Accounts Fund Fund

$ 1,316,047 $ 13,372 $ 1,329,419
500,000 . 500,000
134,066 - 134,066
59,409 - 59,409
86 86
92,827 92,827
371,768 - 371,768
54,754 54,754
181,285 - 181,285
. 17,349 - 17,349
$ 2,727,591 $ 13,372 $ 2,740,963
$ 99,576 $ 139 $ 99,715
13,232 - 13,232
2,919 - 2,919
2,000 - 2,000
117,727 139 117,866
206,654 - 206,654
59,409 - 59,409
13,233 13,233
1,000,000 - 1,000,000
134,066 - 134,066
1,209,735 - 1,209,735
2,403,210 13,233 2,416,443
2,727,591 $ 13,372 $ 2,740,963
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City of Nichols Hills
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund Accounts
For the Year Ended June 20, 2014

Designated
General Fund Accounts Fund Total General Fund
REVENUES
Taxes $ 3,104,748 $ - $ 3,104,748
Fees and fines 141,016 - 141,016
Licenses and permits 148,175 - 148,175
Intergovernmental 481,702 - 481,702
Charges for services 873,065 - 873,065
Investment earnings 5,260 - 5,260
Miscellaneous 206,100 3,174 209,274
Total revenues 4,960,066 3,174 4,063,240
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 1,473,204 . 1,473,284
Public safety 3,599,893 3,401 3,603,204
Highways and roads 232,078 - 232,078
Public works 798,351 1,207 799,558
Culture and recreation 166,235 - 166,235
Total Expenditures 6,269,851 4,608 6,274,458
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures {1,309,785) {1,434) {1,311,219)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES {USES)
Transfers in 1,377,800 - 1,377.800
Transfers out (1,533,225) - (1,533,225}
Total other financing sources and uses {155,425) - (155,425)
FUND BALANCE
Net change in fund balances (1,465,210} {1,434) (1,466,644)
Fund balances - beginning 3,868,420 14,667 3,883,087
Fund balances - ending $ 2,403,210 $ 13,233 $ 2,416,443
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Other receivables

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

Fund halances:
Restricted for:
Streets
Public safety
Assigned for:
Streets
Total fund balances

Total liabiltties and fund balances

City of Nichols Hills

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2014

Total Nonmajor

Street and Alley Governmental

Fund E-911 Fund Funds

$ 92,296 $ 11,299 $ 103,595
1,286 - 1,286
3,795 - 3,795
- 114 114
$ 97,377 $ 11,413 $ 108,790
$ 807 $ - $ 807
807 - 807
95,564 - 95,564
- 11,413 11,413
1,006 - 1,006
96,570 11,413 107,983
$ 97,377 $ 11,413 $ 108,790
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City of Nichols Hills
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

Total Nonmaijor

Street and Alley Governmental
Fund E-911 Fund Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ 1,254 $ 1,254
Intergovernmental 36,514 - 36,514
Total revenues 36,514 1,264 37,768
EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public safety - 75 75
Highways and roads 9,216 - 9,216
Total Expenditures 9,216 75 9,291
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures 27,298 1,179 28,477
Net change in fund balances 27,298 1,179 28477
Fund balances - beginning 69,272 10,234 79,506
Fund balances - ending $ 96,570 $ 11,413 $ 107,983
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City of Nichols Hllls
Combining Schedule of Net Position
Enterprise Fund Accounts
June 30, 2014

Nichols Hills
Nichols Hills Municipal
Municipal Authority CIF
Authority Account Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,116,136 $ 1,991 $ 1,118,127
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 20,870 - 20,870
Investments 1,100,633 - 1,100,633
Accounts receivable, net 525,990 . 525,990
Accrued interest receivable 382 - 382
Total current assets 2,764,011 1,991 2,766,002
Non-current assets:
Capital Assets:
Non-depreciable assets 492,760 - 492,760
Cther capital assets, net of depreciation 17,357,519 231,402 17,588,921
Total non-current assets 17,850,279 231,402 18,081,681
Total assets 20,614,290 233,393 20,847,683
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 71,884 - 71,884
Due to other funds 79,385 13,442 92,827
Compensated absences, current portion 2,121 - 2,121
Note payable, current portion 648 - 648
Total current liabilities 154,038 13,442 167,480
Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences 19,088 - 19,088
Meter deposit liability 20,870 20,870
Note payable 22,279 - 22,279
Total non-current liabilities 62,237 - 62,237
Total liabilities 216,275 13,442 229,717
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 18,058,754 - 18,058,754
Unrestricted L 2,339,261 219,951 2,559,212
Total net position $ 20,398,015 $ 219,951 $ 20,617,966
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City of Nichols Hills
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Enterprise Fund Accounts

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014

REVENUES
Charges for Service:
Water charges
Wastewater charges
Water taps
Penalties
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative
Water and wastewater operations
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest and investment revenue
Miscellaneous revenue
Interest expense
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets

Total non-operating revenue (expenses)

Income (loss) before contributions and iransfers
Capital contributions
Transfers out

Change in net position

Total net position - beginning
Total net position - ending

Nichols Hills
Nichols Hills Municipal
Municipal Authority CIF
Authority Account Total

$ 2,644,758 $ - $ 2,644,758
951,695 - 951,695
23,650 23,650

18,596 - 18,596
3,638,699 - 3,638,699
473,021 - 473,021
890,791 13,442 004,233
1,322,152 - 1,322,152
2,685,964 13,442 2,699,406
952,735 (13,442) 939,293

5,592 5,592

15,079 - 15,079
{21) - (21)
{47,014) - (47,014)
(26,364) - (26,364)
926,371 (13,442) 912,929
1,293,894 - 1,293,894
(1,377,800} - (1,377,800)
842,465 (13,442} 829,023
19,555,550 233,393 19,788,943

$ 20,398,015 $ 219,951 $ 20,617,966
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